
 TOWN OF CLINTON  

PLANNING BOARD MEETING  

FINAL MINUTES 

December 4, 2012  

 1 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT    MEMBERS ABSENT 
 

Mike McCormack, Chairman      

Art DePasqua  

Gerald Dolan  

Tracie Ruzicka   

Robert Marrapodi       

Paul Thomas 

Eliot Werner 

 

ALSO PRESENT 

Arlene Campbell, Secretary         

  

Chairman McCormack called the meeting to order at 7:33 p.m. 

 

VARIANCE APPLICATION: 

 

None 

 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

 

Smyth 2 lot Subdivision – property owned by Olga Smyth located at 282-311 Sunset 

Trail, Tax Grid No. 6467-00-654826. 

 

The applicant wishes to subdivide a ±117.28 lot into 2 lots. Lot 1 – ±74.64 acres 

and Lot 2 – ±42.65 acres. The property is in an AR 5 Zoning District.  

 

Douglas and Elizabeth Smyth along with their Surveyor/Engineer, Mark Graminski, 

appeared for this application.  

 

Chairman McCormack noted that this is a continuation of the public hearing that was 

opened on November 13, 2012.  

 

Mr. Graminski recapped what had transpired at the last meeting. He indicated the items 

that are missing on the map per Mr. Werner’s comment. He noted that he didn’t make 

any changes on the site plan since the public hearing is still open.  

 

Mr. Graminski discussed the email that was received from the Town Engineer regarding 

the delineation of the wetlands on the property.  

 

Chairman McCormack opened questions from the board and the public.  

 



 TOWN OF CLINTON  

PLANNING BOARD MEETING  

FINAL MINUTES 

December 4, 2012  

 2 

Mr. DePasqua acknowledged the presence of the Highway Superintendent to address the 

concern of the neighboring property owners regarding the driveway (see previous 

minutes).  

 

Mr. Tompkins explained that he re-examined the driveway in question. There is a stream 

on the right side of the driveway but the driveway is not a wetland. Based on his 

measurement, this driveway has a sight line of 200 feet in both directions. Although there 

are three or four trees along the road, Mr. Tompkins noted that you can see around them. 

These trees are not bad. He recommended not cutting these trees. If there is a problem, 

then cut the trees down. Mr. Tompkins also suggested clearing the bushes.   

 

Mr. Tompkins addressed the issue about the gravel that was put on this driveway. He 

explained that the property owner at the end of Horseshoe Trail gave him a big pile of 

gravel. He noted that he dropped off less than a truckload on the side of the road to get rid 

off the stuff that he didn’t need, and that Mr. Wilson in turn moved this to the driveway. 

Mr. Tompkins noted that the Highway Department did not do this driveway nor put 

gravel on this property. They do not go onto anyone’s property.  

 

Mr. Tompkins discussed the issue about the driveway going in before the driveway 

permit was issued. He stated that he issued a temporary driveway permit since the 

driveway was already there. This is a pre-existing driveway. He added that he already 

sighted the distance of this driveway.  

 

David Towle, 290 Schultzville Road, asked if there was a driveway permit issued at that 

time. Mr. Tompkins responded, “Yes.” Ms. Campbell presented the driveway permit 

dated 3-27-12 to the public.  

 

Mr. Towle asked if the sight distance of this driveway is acceptable. The Highway 

Superintendent responded positively.  

 

Mr. Towle asked about the location of this driveway. 

 

Elizabeth Smyth, 295 Sunset Trail, addressed the concern of the neighboring property 

owners. She stated that they inherited the situation on this property. They moved from 44 

Schultzville Road to this property. She is a writer. She noted that she also has a practice 

where she meets with people at her house. The reason why the driveway in question is 

placed on this location is because she asked for it. There is no other place to put a 

driveway. She also expressed her understanding about the concern of the neighboring 

property owners.   

 

Mr. Tompkins agreed with Ms. Smyth. This is the only feasible place for another 

driveway. This is actually a better site than where it was. There could be more problems 

for anybody who’s going through that stream.  

 



 TOWN OF CLINTON  

PLANNING BOARD MEETING  

FINAL MINUTES 

December 4, 2012  

 3 

Mr. Towle asked why they opened up another driveway (toward Schultzville) in front of 

the barn. He asked, “Was there a permit issued for this driveway?” 

 

Ms. Smyth responded that this driveway is just for emergency use only. This driveway is 

for emergency vehicles that cannot go through the other driveway.  

 

Mr. Towle asked, “If this is just for emergency use only, then what are the stipulations?” 

 

Mr. Tompkins responded that he has no knowledge about this driveway. He stated that he 

will check into this.  

 

Patricia Towle of 290 Schultzville Road remarked that the issue here is that the driveway 

was cut before the permit wasissued. The neighbors are stuck. It’s done.  

 

Mr. Towle agreed. He stated that it is the system. Build what you want before a permit is 

issued. The same thing goes with the structures on the property. The buildings are up 

before the building permits are issued.  

 

Mr. Towle questioned about this property under Dutchess Land Conservancy. He 

commented that there are lots of structures and activities on this property. He asked, “Are 

they even aware of this?” 

 

Mr. Towle asked about the purpose of why this property is under Conservancy. It seems 

that you can just put up a structure on this property without a question. Mr. Towle 

commented that the town is allowing these things to happen.  

 

Chairman McCormack responded that this is a Planning Board meeting. The public needs 

to go before the Town Board meeting if they want to raise a concern.  

 

Mr. Marrapodi addressed the above concern. The town doesn’t allow these things to 

happen. People will just build on their own to avoid taxes. He opined that the town 

cannot police everything.  

 

Mr. Towle asked if all the structures on this property have permits. Chairman 

McCormack responded that as far as the Planning Board knows, the Building Inspector 

signed off all the permits on this property.  

 

Ms. Smyth reiterated that they just inherited the situation on this property. They are 

trying to clean up and put restrictions on this property.  

 

Mr. Towle stated that he doesn’t know why the neighboring property owners aren’t 

around that night. He opined that maybe because there was no notice sent out. He stated 

that the reason why he was there is because he remembered and knew that there would be 

no notice sent out.  

 



 TOWN OF CLINTON  

PLANNING BOARD MEETING  

FINAL MINUTES 

December 4, 2012  

 4 

Hearing no more comments from the public, the board agreed to close the public hearing. 

Mr. DePasqua motioned to close the public hearing, seconded by Mr. Thomas, all Aye, 

motion carried, 7-0. 

 

Smyth 2 lot Subdivision – property owned by Olga Smyth located at 282-311 Sunset 

Trail, Tax Grid No. 6467-00-654826. 

 

The applicant wishes to subdivide a ±117.28 lot into 2 lots. Lot 1 – ±74.64 acres 

and Lot 2 – ±42.65 acres. The property is in an AR 5 Zoning District.  

 

Douglas and Elizabeth Smyth along with their Surveyor/Engineer, Mark Graminski, were 

all back for the conclusion of their proposal.   

 

Mr. DePasqua asked if the whole property is classified as a working farm. Mr. Smyth 

responded, “Yes.”  

 

Mr. DePasqua commented about all the equipment on the property. He suggested having 

all these equipment parked on one side of the property.  

 

Mr. Werner indicated the letter from the Zoning Enforcement Officer stated that Mr. 

Wilson’s intention is to clean up this property. Mr. Smyth noted that the bulldozer will be 

moved off the property once they’re done with it.  

 

The board reviewed the Long Form EAF. After all the discussions were made, the board 

passed a resolution, to wit: 

 

Mr. Werner motioned for the following resolution: 

 

Be it Resolved, that the Town of Clinton Planning Board has determined that the Smyth 

2 lot subdivision, tax grid no. 6467-00-654826 will not have a significant impact on the 

environment; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Town of Clinton Planning Board hereby 

issues a Negative Declaration pursuant to the requirements of the State Environmental 

Quality Review Act 6 NYCRR 617.6 (g) and in accordance with Article 8 of the 

Environmental Conservation Law.  

 

Seconded by Ms. Ruzicka, all Aye, Motion carried, 7-0. 

 

Mr. Werner asked how to address the issue regarding storage and other concerns about 

this property. This property is under Ag and Market’s Ruling. 

 

Chairman McCormack responded that the applicant is willing to clean up the property. 

The board can include this in the resolution.  

 



 TOWN OF CLINTON  

PLANNING BOARD MEETING  

FINAL MINUTES 

December 4, 2012  

 5 

Mr. Marrapodi asked if they need to include the town engineer’s response in the 

resolution to address the concern about flagging the wetlands on the map. The board 

agreed to include this in the resolution. 

 

Mr. Werner motioned that the Town of Clinton Planning Board grant conditional 

Preliminary and Final Plat approval to Olga Smyth for the purpose of subdividing lands 

on a 117.282-acre site located at 282–311 Sunset Trail, which is in an AR-5 Zoning 

District in the Town of Clinton, tax grid #132400-6467-00-654826. 

 

WHEREAS: 

 

1) The applicant is requesting a two-lot subdivision as shown on the survey created by 

Mark R. Graminski, L.S., license #49578, dated 9-16-11 and revised 11-5-12. 

 

2) The acreage after the subdivision will be 74.637 acres for Lot 1 and 42.645 acres for 

Lot 2. 

 

3) A Long Form EAF is on file. 

 

4) The property is a working farm located in an Agricultural District.  The applicant has 

completed an Ag Data Statement. 

 

5) The property is located in the Ridgeline, Scenic, and Historic Protection Overlay 

District. 

 

6) The property is substantially contiguous to a Critical Environmental Area. 

 

7) A New York State DEC freshwater wetland (SP-11) is located on the southern 

boundary of Lot 2.  The Town Engineer concurs that it is not necessary to engage a 

specialist to delineate this wetland since there is no land disturbance associated with the 

application. 

 

8) Per the easement with the Dutchess Land Conservancy, no further subdivisions are 

permitted on either parcel and only a private residence may be built on Lot 1. 

 

9) At its 10-25-12 meeting, the Zoning Board of Appeals granted the applicant an area 

variance from Section 250.16 Attachment 2 of the Town of Clinton Zoning Law, to 

reduce the front yard setback for an existing dwelling from 100 feet to 63 feet, for an 

existing carport from 100 feet to 32 feet, and for an existing second dwelling from 100 

feet to approximately 54 feet. 

 

10) The Town of Clinton Planning Board granted conditional sketch plan approval on 9-

4-12. 

 



 TOWN OF CLINTON  

PLANNING BOARD MEETING  

FINAL MINUTES 

December 4, 2012  

 6 

11) The Town of Clinton Planning Board declared itself lead agency on 10-16-12 for this 

unlisted, uncoordinated action.  Involved agencies are the Dutchess County Health 

Department and Town of Clinton Highway Department.  Interested agencies are the 

Dutchess County Department of Planning, Town of Clinton Scenic and Historic Roads 

and CAC, and the Dutchess Land Conservancy. 

 

12) In accordance with Section 250.95.C.1 of the Town of Clinton Zoning Law, a Public 

Hearing was held on 11-13-12 and continued on 12-4-12. 

 

13) A SEQRA review of this unlisted, uncoordinated action (and the Public Hearing held 

on 11-13-12 and 12-4-12) has resulted in a negative declaration being prepared and 

declared in accordance with the New York State Environmental Quality Review Act on 

12-4-12. 

 

14) The applicant has stated that any earth moving machinery, excavators and similar 

equipment stored on Lot 2 will be located such that it is buffered or screened from view 

from the road and adjoining properties.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Town of Clinton Planning Board grants 

Preliminary and Final Plat approval for the requested subdivision of lands when the 

following conditions are met. 

 

a) The following items should be included on the Preliminary/Final subdivision plat: 

 

• The “notice to prospective neighbors” delineated in Section 250.51.C of the Town 

of Clinton Zoning Law. 

• The two new driveways and the driveway that has been removed. 

• A note indicating that if any disturbance may occur in the future within the 

wetland areas and/or buffers, the wetlands must be flagged, certified by the 

regulatory agency, and a permit obtained. 

 

b) The following items on the plat should be changed. 

 

• In #7 of PLAN NOTES, the site address should be Clinton Corners. 

 

• In the list of neighboring agricultural parcels, the addresses for Botway and 

Casale should have the physical location of the properties as well as the owners’ 

mailing addresses. 

 

c) The Permission to File block has been signed by the Dutchess County Department of 

Health. 

 

d) The Owner’s Consent block has been signed. 

 

e) All appropriate fees have been paid. 



 TOWN OF CLINTON  

PLANNING BOARD MEETING  

FINAL MINUTES 

December 4, 2012  

 7 

 

 

f) The Highway Superintendent approves the emergency driveway located east of the 

barn and west of Schultzville Road. 

 

g) The Zoning Enforcement Officer determines that the property is not being used as a 

Contractor’s Yard as defined in the Zoning Law.  

 

Seconded by Mr. DePasqua. 

 

Discussion. Mr. Graminski stated that the town engineer suggested including a notation 

on the map about the wetlands on the property. The board agreed to add this item as a 

condition to the approval. 

 

All Aye, Motion carried, 7-0. 

 

The Ridge School (Board Discussion) – property owned by Michael and Linda Kondor 

located at 86 Allen Road, Tax Grid No. 6466-00-590235. 

 

Applicant wishes to move the driveway from Phase 1 to Phase 2 of the Approved 

Site Plan in order to obtain Certificate of Occupancy of the existing building to 

apply loan to fund the balance of the construction project.  

 

This project received an approval dated July 6, 2010.  

 

Nevien Sidarous, applicant’s architect, appeared on behalf of the applicant to get the 

board’s opinion about this project.  

 

Ms. Sidarous explained that Phase 2 of this project wasn’t done due to financial 

constraints. The applicants’ intention is to get a Certificate of Occupancy in order to get a 

loan to fund the remainder of this project. She asked, “What do they need to do?”  

 

The board reviewed the map. Chairman McCormack responded that the map needs to be 

changed to reflect these changes.  

 

After exchanging opinion about this proposal, the board agreed that this application needs 

an amendment of Site Plan approval. The board advised the applicant to show a notation 

on the map indicating that the proposed driveway from Phase 1 of the project will be 

moved to Phase 2 of the project.  

 

Gladstone Site Plan and Special Permit – property owned by Marie Claire Gladstone 

located at 137 Hollow Road, Tax Grid No. 6267-00-513506. 

 

Applicant is seeking a special permit to convert an existing barn into a guest 

apartment. The property is 12.37 acres in a AR5 A Zoning District. 



 TOWN OF CLINTON  

PLANNING BOARD MEETING  

FINAL MINUTES 

December 4, 2012  

 8 

 

Kevin Halton, builder, appeared on behalf of the property owner. He explained that they 

want to convert the existing barn into a one-bedroom guest house. The footprints of the 

structure will remain the same. There will be no new windows and sidings will be the 

same. Mr. Halton added that an application for the Board of Health approval is being 

prepared concurrently. The water will be supplied by the existing well.  

 

The board reviewed the Site Plan that was submitted and prepared by Mr. Halton.  

 

Mr. DePasqua asked about the size of the main dwelling. Mr. Halton responded that the 

main house is 3,100 square feet and the barn is 744 square feet.  

 

Mr. Werner asked if there are any farms within 500 feet of the property. Mr. Halton 

responded, “No.”  

 

The board edified the applicant on how to do a Site Plan. The dimension of the buildings 

needs to be shown on the map. Ms. Ruzicka explained the checklist requirements to the 

applicant.  

 

After all the reviews were made, the board agreed to put a note on the map that this 

property needs a minimum of ten acres. There will be no subdivision once the accessory 

apartment is approved and constructed. The property is not in the Ridgeline. A Long 

Form EAF is needed since the property is in a CEA.  

 

The applicant needs to submit a site plan.  

 

RV Interlake (Annual Permit Renewal) – property on 428 Lake Dr. Tax Grid No. 6469-

00-218434.  

 

 The applicant wishes to renew their annual permit.  

 

Mr. Werner motioned to approve the renewal of permit, seconded by Mr. Marrapodi. 

 

Discussion. Chairman McCormack asked, “Why is this renewal so early?” Mr. DePasqua 

asked if anybody ever visited the site recently. Ms. Campbell responded that the Zoning 

Officer visited the site recently.  

 

The board agreed to table the motion.  

 

Mr. DePasqua motioned to table the motion, seconded by Mr. Dolan, all aye, motion 

carried, 7-0. 

 

 

 

 



 TOWN OF CLINTON  

PLANNING BOARD MEETING  

FINAL MINUTES 

December 4, 2012  

 9 

 

OTHER MATTERS (Board Discussion)  

 

Chairman McCormack stated that the board needs a letter of authorization from the 

property owners so that they can visit the site.  

 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

 

The board agreed to review the minutes at the next meeting.  

 

 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Chairman McCormack motioned to adjourn the meeting at 9: 40 pm, seconded by Mr. 

Thomas, All Aye, Motion carried, 7-0. 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

Arlene A. Campbell, Clerk 

Planning & Zoning Board of Appeals  

 

Cc: Carol Mackin, town clerk 


